10.

11.

12,

13.

14,

15.

16.

17,

AGENDA
Regular Council meeting to be held
Tuesday November 5, 2019 at 7:00 p.m.
Council Chambers @250 Clark, Powassan

CALL TO ORPER
ROLL CALL

DISCLOSURE OF MONETARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE THEREOQF

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

PRESENTATIONS

ADOPTION OF MINUTES
6.1 Regular Council meeting of October 15, 2019

MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL
7.1 Trout Creek Community Centre Board minutes of September 11, 2019

MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM APFPOINTED BOARDS
8.1 Powassan and District Union Public Library Board minutes of Seplember 23, 2019

STAFF REPORTS
9.1 Memo- Cemetery Bylaw- K.Bester, Deputy Clerk
9.2 Memo- Integrity Commissioner

BY-LAWS
10.1 By-Law 2019-26 Reduced Load Periods

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

12.1 Donation Request- Powassan Girl Guides

12.2 MTO update on Interchanges/Service Roads- verbal- Deputy Mayor R. Hall.
12.3 Donation Request- Trout Creek Booster Club

CORRESPONDENCE

13.1 District of Parry Sound Violence Against Women Coordinating Committee- National Day of Remembrance

13.2 RealTerm Energy- Measurement and Verification Report for LED Streetlights
13.3 OMPF 2020-Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund allocation notice

13.4  Amberley Gavel Meetings Workshop- North Bay Dec. 10, 2015

13.5 LCBO Convenience Outlets Program

ADDENDUM

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

NOTICE OF SCHEDULE OF COUNCIL AND BOARD MELETINGS
16.1. November 2019 Schedule of Events

PUBLIC QUESTIONS




18. CLOSED SESSION
18.1 Adoption of Closed Session minutes of October 15, 2019
18.2 Potential Litigation-Section 239(2)(e) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)(e) of the Procedural Bylaw- litigation
or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board.

18.3 Proposed Acquisition or Disposition of Land for municipal or local board purposes- Section 239(2)(c) of the
Municipal Act and under 6(1)(c) of the Procedural Bylaw.

19. MOTION TO ADJOURN




2019-334

2019-335

2019-336

2019-337

2019-338

2019-339

2019-340

The Municipatity of
Powa:=an

Regular Council Meeting
Tuesday, October 15,2019, at 7:00 pm
Trout Creck Friendship Centre

Present: Peter Mclsaac, Mayor
Randy Hall, Deputy Mayor
Markus Wand, Councillor
Dave Britton, Councillor
Debbie Piekarski, Councillor

Absent: '

Staff: Maureen Lang, CAQ/Clerk-Treasurer
Presentations: None

Disclosure of Monetary Interest and General Nature Thereof:
D. Britton Item 8.1/8.2  Wife employer North Bay District Health Unit

M. Wand Item 15 I am listed in the accounts payable for the Wildlife
Damage Compensation Program

Moved by: M. Wand Seconded by: . Piekarski
That the agenda of the Council meeting of October 15, 2019, be approved with the
following addition:

Item 12.4 Pine Trail System Carried
Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: R. Hall

That the minutes of the Regular Council meeting of October 1, 2019, be adopted. Carried
Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Britton

That the minutes from the Recreation Committee meeting dated September 4, 2019,

be received. Carried
Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: M. Wand

That the minutes from the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit, dated June 26,

2019, be received. Carried
Moved by: M, Wand Seconded by: R, Hall

That the minutes from the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit Finance and

Property Committee dated June 26, 2019, be received, Carried
Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: R. Hall

That the minutes from the Golden Sunshine Municipal Non-Profit Housing Corporation

committee meeting dated 2019-07, be received. Carried
Moved by; D, Britton Seconded by: R. Hall

That the minutes dated June 24, 2019, from the Powassan and District Union Public Library

Board, be received, Carried

DATE OF

| e
aeurs| oy of17
AGENT i
WE [ |




2019-341

2019-342

2019-343

2019-344

2019-345

2019-346

2019-347

2019-348

2019-349

2019-350

Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Britton
That the draft minutes dated September 23, 2019, from the Powassan and District Union
Public Library Board, be received,

Moved by: R, Hall Seconded by: D. Brition
That By-law 2019-25, being a By-law to authorize an agreement between the Municipality
of Powassan and the Ontario Provincial Police for police services.

READ a FIRST and SECOND time and considered READ a THIRD and FINAL time
and adopted as such in open Council this the 15" day of October, 2019.

Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: R. Hall

That By-law 2019-26, being a By-law to provide for reduced load periods within the
boundaries of the Mumclpahty of Powassan.

READ a FIRST and SECOND time the 15" day of October 2019.

READ a THIRD and FINAL time, and considered passed as such in open Council this
the 5" day of November, 2019.

Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Britton
That the correspondence dated July 4, 2019 from the Trout Creek Friendship Club
regarding their furnace/heating system, be received, and further, that our DBO review
the furnace and determine the proper heating system that meets the needs of the
Friendship Centre, for both heat and noise.

Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: R. Hall
That the correspondence dated October 1, 2019 from the Association of Municipalities
of Ontario (AMO) regarding liability and insurance cost reforms, be received.

Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Britton
That the correspondence dated October 4, 2019 from Almaguin Community Economic
Development regarding their upcoming cyclocross cycling event, be received.

Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: R. Hall
That the correspondence from the District of Patry Sound Social Services Administration
Board regarding an invitation to attend their Homeless Objectives Maximizing Efforts
(H.0.M.E.) meeting being held November 19, 2019, be received.

Moved by; D, Britton Seconded by: R. Hall
That Resolution No. 2019-280 from the Council of East Ferris regarding child-care
services at conferences and forums, be received.

Moved by: D, Britton Seconded by: R. Hall
That the accounts payable listing reports dated October 2, 3, 7 & 10, 2019, in the
total amount of $255,736.54 be approved for payment.

Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: R. Hall
That Council now adjourns to closed session at 7:50pm to discuss:

18.1 Closed Session minutes of August 6, 2019,

Carried

Carried

Carried

Carried

Carried

Carried

Carried

Carried

Carried




2019-351

2019-352

18.2 Potential Litigation-Section 239(2)(e) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)e)

of the Procedural Bylaw-litigation or potential litigation, including matters before

administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board. Carried
Moved by; M. Wand Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That Council now reconvenes to regular session at 8:05pm, Carried
Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: M. Wand
Carried

That Council now adjourns at 8:05pm.,

Mayor CAQ/Clerk-Treasurer




The Municipality of

WdAS2dIl

TROUT CREEK COMMUNITY CENTRE BOARD MEETING
WEDNESDDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2019

@ 7:00PM

TROUT CREEK COMMUNITY CENTRE

1. Call to Order
Motion 2019-63

Moved By: Ted Hummel Seconded By: Karen Chadbourn
That the meeting be called to order.

PRESENT
Trina Hummel-Co Chair
Ted Huramel
Karen Chadhourn
Jeff Eckensviller
Elva Taggart
Randy Hall-Councillor
Tyson Hummel

STAFF
Dale Jardine-Arena Manager

Terri-Anne Fricker-Bar/Food Event Coordinator
Norma Conrad-Recording Secretary

Absent with regrets
Brian Eckensviller
Peter Mclsaac-Mayor
Jeff Conrad

Guest(s)
None

2. Disclosure of pecuniary interest and general thereof:
None

3. Approval of Agenda
Motion 2019-64

Moye By: Ted Hummel Seconded By: Elva Taggart
That the agenda is approved '

toutme (Noy.S ) (9
i e




4, Presentation(s)
None

5. Approval of Minutes
Motion 2019-65

Moved By: Karen Chadbourn Seconded By: Elva Taggart
That the minutes of the previous meeting of September 11, 2019 be adopted.

6. Manager’s Report

Arena Manager Dale Jardine reported that the rooftop air conditioner south end is acting up and not
working properly. Councillor Randy Hal! advised Dale to book a service call, and bring back a report at
the next meeting in November. Dale also mentioned that he noticed the outside stage had rotten
boards and needs attention in the spring.

The Trout Creek ball shed door behind the back stop was kicked in and needs attention, the Recording
Secretary was asked to notify Mike Heasman in the Recreation Department to check things out. She is to
also ask Mike about the old shed in the back area to possibly get it torn down before it falls down. This
will probably need to be addressed by the Recreation Committee.

7. Bar/Food/Events Coordinator

Chairperson Jeff Eckensviller welcomed our new Bar/Food/Events Coordinator Terri-Anne Fricker to the
team. She gave a brief discussion about herself, she also discussed what her plans were going to be in

utilizing the space at the community centre. The Board was very enthusiastic and pleased as to what
she has planned.

8. Member's Report

Councillor Randy Hall reported that he had attend the October 23™ Trout Creek Agricultural Society
meeting. He advised the Board that they will be celebrating their 100™ anniversary at their Fall Fair in
August 2020. Randy also mentioned that the Trout Creek Agricultural Society would like the Trout Creek
Community Centre Board to be apart of their Fall Fair 100* anniversary celebration festivities.

He mentioned that the Trout Creek Ag Society will be applying for government grants to help with
maintenance and upgrading at the community centre,




9. Review Action Items

Event Attractions

Randy Hall had a brief discussion with members updating them on different ideas to attract people to
attend events at the Trout Creek Community Centre. Such things as, setting up a practise track for snow
cross., and different motor sports events (Lawn tractor races, atv mud bog etc.).

Dressing Room Rentals
A brief discussion amongst the members to discuss dressing room rentals. A motion was then passed.

Motion 2019-66

Moved By: Tyson Hummel Seconded By: Karen Chadbourn
That the Trout Creek Community Centre Board recommends a dressing room rental for the Trout Creek
Old timers group for the 2019-2020 hockey season for $700.00.

Canteen Rental (downstairs)

A brief discussion amongst the members to discuss canteen rental downstairs. A motion was then
passed.

Motion 2019-67

Moved By: Trina Hummel Seconded By: Randy Hall
That the Trout Creek Community Centre Board recommends the same terms and conditions for the one

year (August 2019 to August 2020) canteen rental agreement as the previous year (August 2018 to
August 2019),

Summary Expense sheet

A summary expense sheet for the Calvin Vollrath Concert was added to the agenda package for viewing
purpose only.

10. Business/Correspondence

A letter was received from the Trout Creek Friendship Club walking group requesting the upstairs hall for
walking during the winter months. A brief discussion was had. A motion was then passed.

Motion 2019-68
Moved By: Trina Hummel Seconded By: Randy Hal!
The Trout Creek Community Centre Board recommends renewing the agreement for the Trout Creek

Friendship Club walking group for the Trout Creek Community Centre upstairs hall for the winter 2019-
2020 season for $300.00

11. Addendum
None




12. Accounts Payable

Motion 2019-69

Move By: Trina Hummel Seconded By: Ted Hummel

That the accounts payable listings in the total amount of $6,634.38 be approved for payment.

13. Notice of Meeting
Motion 2019-70

Moved By: Trina Hummel Seconded By: Karen Chadbourn
That the next meeting be scheduled for November 13, 2019 at 7:00pm

14. Closed Session
None

15. Adjournment
Motion 2019-71

Moved By: Karen Chadbourn Seconded By: Elva Taggart
That the Committee adjourned at 8:34pm

Chair . Recording Secretary




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

1.6 Overview

Critchley Hill Architecture Inc. (CHAI) was retained by in December 2018 to conduct an
assessment of barrier free design conditions which exist as well as analyze deficiencies which do not meet the
current requirements of the Ontario Building Code (OBC 2012) as per the recent 2012 edition. Additionally,
CHAI was also retained to undertake a Space Needs Assessment of the current use of space conditions within
the interior of the building as well as the exterior of the building with the purpose of identifying deficiencies or
opportunities of reconfigured/reallocated program areas. Suppa Engineering Inc. (SEI} has undertaken the
mechanical, electrical, and site analysis components of both barrier free conditions and space needs conditions.
Although unrelated to the intent of this report, a copy of a 2013 building condition assessment report, authored
by Evans Bertrand Hill Wheeler Architecture Inc. & Plotrowski Consultants Inc. has been included in the
appendix should this information assist Owner with a full overview of their building and site.

1.1 Barrier Free Assessment

The purpose of the barrier free assessment is to consider the potential changes that may be required as per the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA) in limited categories for changes which took place in the
Ontario.Building Code as of January 2016. The assessment is intended to identify which upgrades would be

required to meet current codes and standards and to analyze the feasibility/costs associated with the upgrades.

Under current legislation, is not required by the OBC 2012 to perform a mandatory “retrofit’. Barrier
Free upgrades are required by Ontario legislation only when a bullding owner proceeds to undertake alterations
defined in Part 11 of the OBC 2012 as an "Extensive Renovation” or the construction of an addition to the
building. Should the Owner undertake a scope of work defined in Part 11 of the OBC 2012 as a "Basic
Renavation”, barrier free improverents are not required, A "Basic Renovation” is defined as minor construction
work which is imited to the interior renovation of a suite and does not impact the struciure of the building. Itis
important to note that as part of the AODA, Ontario is attempting to be a barrier free province by 2025, Shortly
following the passing of the AODA Act which became law on June 13, 2005, the Ministry of Community and
Social Services appointed a Standards Development Committee (SDC) to develop a proposed Accessible Built
Environment {ABE) Standard. The commiitee is made up of 44 individuals from various sectors of Ontaric life.
Half of the membership have physical disabilities, The ABE standard was submitted to the Minister of
Community and Social Services. Since 2008, on behalf of the SDC, the Ontario Human Rights Commission
{OHRC]) has issued submissions to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing (MMAH) to propose increased

barrier free upgrades to existing facilities during new construction and extensive renovations as well as

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

MORTH BAY ONTARIC 705,995,2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

proposals for mandatory retrofits. These changes currently can only be implemented through regulations in the
Ontario Building Code. It is expected that between now and 2025, new regulations will be adapted however they
cannot be enforced until they are incorporated into the Ontario Building Code. It is not the purpose of this report
to speculate if new regulations will be implemented.

This analysis and report will use the OBC 2012 as the comparative benchmark for potential barrier free upgrades
that Owner could consider should they wish to self-enforce changes or implement changes during an "Extensive
Renovation” or building addition. If potential upgrades exceed the requirements of the OBC 2012, they will be
clearly noted as such. On January 10, 2014, the Ontario Association of Architects forwarded an anncuncement
by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing that effective January 1, 2015 new amendments under Ontario
Regulation 332/12 affected accessibility design requirements and subsequent changes to the OBC 2012 were
implemented. This report will incorporate any changes cited in Regulation 332/12.

Accessibility standards have also been established in Ontario for exterior and interior elements which impact the
Design of Public Spaces (DOPS). A standard for Ontario tilted “Design of Public Spaces Standard" has been
published and available to all Ontarians. Large and small designated public sector organizations are now
required to incorporate the design standards when "making planned significant alterations to existing public
spaces” on or after January 1, 2016. Any significant alterations made to Owner would potentially require exterior
upgrades from the parking area to the main entrance reception desk with a focus on barrier free parking, grades,
walking surfaces, entrance conditions, and millwork design at the main reception desk.

1.2  Space Needs Assessment

Owner also identified a reguirement for the consulting team to evaluate the use of space within the building and
throughout the site. Owner has observed below average work place cenditions, poor circutation, and poor
adjacencies of program areas which contribute to challenges with work flow. In addition OWNER is very
concerned with a lack of master planning that typically should account for growth and work space needed to
accommodate additional employees. CHAI and SEI have consolidated their observations within the report and
offered considerations/recommendations and schematic diagrams to improve the existing conditions which
would require further evaluation by OWNER. Construction costs associated with renovations or additions that

are considered necessary to provide a masterplan for growth have also been incorporated into the report.

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 705.995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

2.0 Background

The existing North Bay building is located on , North Bay, Ontario. The following items further
described historical conditions:

Northland Engineering was the original engineer for the original facitity. There have been two additions
to the facility since the original construction as well as two interior renovations.

Upon visual review of the interior layout and building perimeter, it was noted that some changes have
occurred since the completed construction of the facility. Much of the lighting scheme was as per the
original plans, with some exceptions in minor areas. The original construction of the facility was
completed in the late 1970’s.

There was an addition to the south of the building (change area), for which no information has been
obtained. From its construction and the state of the finishes, it appears that this addition was completed
in the late 1980's or early 1990’s. This area is generally staff lounge, change areas, washrcoms and
showers. The 2 main staff washrooms appear new and have had a recent renovation.

There was an addition to the east side (metering area) of the building, completed in 2009.

There have been two recent interior renovation projects completed on the facility with the main level
office area finishes belng completed in 2011 and the 27 level office area rencvation occurring in 2009.

According to the existing drawings provided to us, the floor areas of the facility is as follows;

Garage Area (with stores) = 12,100 ft2
Meter Room (east) Addition = 1,100 fi2
1%t Floor Office Area = 4,000 ft?

South Addition = 2,200 fi?

2™ Floor Office Area = 4,000 fi2

A reduced copy of the overall layout plans are included as “Appendix” in Section 4 of this report.

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIC  705.995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

3.0 On-Site Review of Barrier Free Conditions

During December 2018, Allan Evans, a qualified and senlor employee of Critchley Hill Architecture Inc., and Mike
Murray, a senior Technician with Suppa Engineering Inc., attended the site and reviewed the existing facility.

The 1970's building was designed before Ontario’s first comprehensive Building Code issued in 1986. Barrier
free design requirements were not well developed in the QBC (1988). Improvements to design requirements
were facilitated in subsequent publications of the Ontario Building Code. However, the exterior and interior

barrier free path of travel, washrooms, entrances, clearances, doorways, door hardware, signage, and building
controls/switches do not conform to current OBC (2012) standards. The following report will identify upgrades
which would be necessary during an “Extensive Renovation” as per 11.3.3.2 of the OBC 2012 and which
upgrades are exempt from the OBC 2012 as per table 11.5.1.1.A in the OBC 2012. The upgrades which are
exempt have been cost estimated should the Owner choose to adopt an approach of exceeding the
requirements of the current Ontario Building Code. The exempted uparades represent a scope of work that
would match the requirement of Barrier Free Design necessary for a newly constructed building.

Below is a summary spreadsheet of barrier free components. The chart identifies and confirms mandatory barrier

free upgrades as well as barrier free requirements which are considered exempt if any extensive renovation is

undertaken.
. Atcessibili v._(_:d‘mponeﬁ___- m
Upgrade if part of
3.2 | Entrances - Yes No $5,000.00 | extensive renovation
5.3 Yes Refer to 5.10.4, 5.10.B
' Barrier-free path of travel and 5.12 ~
54 . .
<. | Bullding Controls/Switches | No No )
55 | Nlumination No .
5.6 | Access to parking _ Neo |
57 | Washrooms required to be Yes
58 | Accassibility signs Yes | $1,000.00
39 | Exerorwalks o4 Mo
Doorways & Doors No If part of extensive
5.10A ,

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY OMTARIO 705.985.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

_|_$16,000.00 |




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

Néw doors must meet
OBC-2012 Hardware

5.10B | Door hardware Yes Yes $25,900.00 Upgrade {37 doors) as
: part of extensive
renovation
5.11 | Ramps N/A .
If part of 2 storey
5.12 | Passenger Elevating Devices Yes No $180,000.00 | addition or extensive
renovation
Wheelchair Spaces in seating
513
area 1 N.A 1l ~ o o ]
5.14 1 Assistive listening devices N.A -
.3.15 | water closet stalls N.A See item 19
| 5.16 | water Closets N.A See item 19
If part of 2 storey
5.17 | Urinals Yes $1,500.00 addition or extensive
~ renovation _
If part of 2 storey
5.18 | Lavatories Yes Yes $8,000.00 | addition or extensive
renovation
o Includes Mechanical &
5.19 Electrical costs.
' Universal Washroom Yes No $40,000.00 Required as an
extensive renovation
520 | showersandbathtub |  No | )
521 | Shelves or counters for
________ telephones N.A ~ i
 9-22 | prinking fountains N.A
5.23 | platforms N.A

Tactile Attention Indicators at
5.24 | stair/ramp or high contrast

nosing Yes Yes $12,000.00

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE: INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 706.995.2381 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA




BARRIER FREE

ASSESSMENT STUDY
AODA- Design of Public Spaces Standards (DOPS)
Upgrade Enhanced
Required to Accassibility
meet AODA Upgrades Estimated
2012 Recommended Cost to
__No. | Accessibility Component ~ Yes/No |  Yes/No _Upgrade Comments
1 Qutdoar puhlic use eating N.A
i areas B
2 Outdoor play space N.A
3 Exterior paths of travel Yes ‘ o o $250.00 | Signage
2 No Off street parking
| Off-street parking : provided
7| Fxedqueuingguides MO R
8 | Waiting areas No

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIC 706,995,2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

4.0 Objectives of the Barrier Free Assessment

The following objectives of the barrier free assessment will structure the body of the report and are listed as
follows:

4.1  Ontario Building Code 2012

Barrier-Free Design Standards 11. Accessibility Signs Floor {o Floor Travel
1. Application General 12. Ramps Analysis
2. Entrance Analysis 13. Spaces in Seating Area Analysis
3. Interior Barrier Free Path of Travel 14, Assistive Listening Devices Analysis
4.  Building Controls / Switches 15. Water Closet Stalls
5. lumination Analysis 16. Water Closeis
6. Access to Parking Areas 17. Lavatories
7. Washroom Analysis 18. Universal Toilet Rooms
8. Accessibility Signs Floor to Floor Travel 19. Showers and Bathtubs
9.  Exterior Walks Analysis 20. Shelves or Counters for Telephones
10. Doorways and Doors Analysis 21. Drinking Fountains
4.2

Accessibility Standards for Ontarians with Disabilities Act as it applies to the Design of
Public Places (DOPS)

Ouidoor Public Use Eating Areas

Outdoor Play Spaces

Exterior Paths of Travel

Off-street Parking

Service Counters

2B S i

Fixed Queuing Guides

7. Waiting Areas
Each analysis that is undertaken includes a description of the existing condition, the upgrade(s) that meets
current OBC 2012 requirements, and the cost associated with upgrades exempted from the OBC 2012 should
the Owner chose to exceed the requirement of the OBC. The use of drawings and/or photos will be included to
clearly describe the existing conditions or proposed upgrade.

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

MORTH BAY OMTARIO 705.995,2291 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.0 Barrier Free Assessment

5.1  Application General

OBC Reguirements

3.8.1.1. Application
(1) The requirements of this Section apply to all buildings except,

{a) houses, Including semi-detached houses, duplexes, triplexes, lown houses, row houses and
boarding or rooming houses with fewer than 8 boarders ar roomers,

{b) buildings of Group F, Division | major occupancy, { See Appendix A.)

{€¢) buildings that are not intended to be occupied on.a daily or full time basis, |nciud|ng automatic
telephone exchanges, pumphouses and substations, and

{d) campsfor housing of workers. (See Appendix A.)

A The building is classified in Part 3, Ontario Building Code as an Indusirial Group F Division 2 occupancy
with a combined Group D Business and Personal Services area at the front of the building.
52 Entrances

OBC Reqwrements

e i A A ot S e . itk R S P R L R N AR

3.8.1.2. Entrances (See Appendix A)

(1) Except as provided in Sentence 3.13.8.1.(2), the number of barrier-free entrances into a bun‘dmg shall conform
to.Table 3.8.1.2

Table 3.8.1.2. .
Minimum Number of Pedestrian Entrances Required to be Barrier-Free
Forming Part of Sentence 3.8.1.2.{1)

Column 1 Column 2
Number of pedestrian Minimum number of
entrances into building | pedestrian entrances required
to be barrier- free

1103 1

4t05 2

more 5 Not less than 50%
Column 1 2

{2) One of the barrler-free entrances required by Sentence (1) shall be the principal.entrance ta the building,
{3) * In addition to the barrier-free entrances required by Sentence (1}, a suite of assembly occupancy, business and persanal services
- ﬂccupahcy or mercantile occupancy that is located in the first storey of a-building or in a storey to which a barrier-free path of trave!
_' is provided, and that is separated from the remainder of the building so that there s no access to the remainder of the building, shall
have at least one barrier-free entrance.
- {4} A barrier-frée entrance shall,
(a} be designed in accordance with Article 3.8.3.3., and
{b} lead from,
{i) the outdoors at sidewalk level, or
{ii) a ramp that conforms to Article 3.8.3.4, and leads from a sidewalk.
{5) At a barrier-free entrance that includes more than one doorway, only one of the doorways is required to be designed in
_accordance with Article 3.8.3.3.
{6) If a walkway or pedestrian bridge connects two barrier-free storeys in different buildings, the path of travel from one storey to
the other storey by means of the walkway or bridge shall be barrier-free.




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

A The facility has two (2} pedestrian entrances. The existing entrances did not conform with the OBC (2012)

requirements, however the entrance does meet the barrier free requirements of the 2006 (OBC)
5.3  Barrier Free Path of Travel

OBC Requirements

3 8.1.3 Barrier—Free Path of Travel

: (‘1) Except as required in: Sentence (4) and except as permltted In Subsectlcn 3. 8 3., every barner free path cf travel shall
.provrde an unobstructed W|dth of at Ieast 1 100 mm for the passage of wheelcha|rs

i (2) Intencr and exterrcr walkrng surfaces that are- W|th|n a barner—free path cf travel shall

(b) have any elongated openlngs orlented apprommately perpendlcular to the dlrectlon cf travel L
() e stable, firm and slip-resistant; -
-i(d)- bebevelled at a maximum slope of lin2 at changes in Ievel not mcre than 13 mm and

(e) be prowded W|th sloped- ftcors of ramps. at changes in Ieve! mcre - than 13 mm

] (3) A barriar-ree path of travel is permltted to |nclude ramps passenger elevators or other p!atform eqmpped passenger- ;
; elevatrng de\rlces tc cverccme a drfference in- Ievel : S } . '

(4) Every barrler-frae path cf travel less than 1 600 mm in width shall be prcvlded W|th an unobstructed space not Iess
than.1- 800 mm’in W|dth and 1800 mm in tength located not more than 30m apart (See Appendlx A) . o

(5) .- Where the headreom of an area in a- barner-free path of travet is reduced to léss than 1 980 mim, a. guardrall or other: 5;
barrler wrth |ts leadtng edge at.or belcw 680 mm, frcm the fmrshed fioor shaII be prowded (See Appendrx A

(6) A normally occupled F!oor area that is not requlred by Art|cle 3 8. 2 1 tc have 8 barrrer-free path of travel shall meet
the following requirements:
. (8) interior walking surfacés throughcut the ncrmally cccupled fiocr area shall comply W|th Clauses (2)(a) to {: e) and‘
(b) where the headroom:of an area in a corridor or dlsle in the normally occupled Fioor area‘is rediced to less than

1°980-mm, a guardrail or other barrier with its Ieadlng edge ator be1cw 680 mm from the flnlshed flcor shall be
prowded (See Appendlx A) :

Conditions:

A The existing barrier free path of travel not does conform with the OBC (2012).

.2 The barrier fres path of travel from the parking area to the main enfrance is adequate.

.3 The building does not have a barrier free path of travel between the lower and upper level. A passenger
elevator device is required if the Owner proceeds with an addition or extensive renovation.
Main ficor hallways conform to the barrier free path of travel clearances.
Second floor haliways conform to the barrier free path of travel clearances.
There are 37 existing doors that require door hardware upgrades to conform with OBC (2012). Upgrade
from knob handles to lever handles are required.

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

MNORTH BAY ONTARIC 705.995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.4  Building Controls/Switches

OBC Requirements

3.8, 5, Controls ' '
(1) Except as required. by Sentences 3.5.2.2, (1) and 3.8.3.8(1) for elevators and Sentence 3.8.3.3.(17) for
‘power doof operator controls controls for the operatlon of building services or- safety devices, includling

electnca! switches; thermostats and. |ntercom swrtches |ntended to be operated by the occupant and Iocated
- in-a barfler:free path: of travel shall,”

(a) be accessible to-a person |n awheelcharr usrng a S|de approach
‘ (b) be’ operable; . ey :
(I) using one hand and wrth a force of not more than 222 N |n the case of a manual pull statlon and '
B {13 usmg a closed flst and wrth 8 force of not more than 22 2 N 1n the case of aII other centrols and
(c) - be mounted, . S
ROR 1 200. mm above the flmshed ﬂoor i the case of & thermostat or a manual puII statlon and

-(ii) - notless than 900 mm-and not more than 1. 100 mm above the flnlshed floor |n the: oase of all: other controls.
(See Appendrx A ) _ :

' (2) A sngnal |ntended for the publlc fo. |nd|cate the operatron of a burldmg secunty system that controls access to a
bulldmg shall consrst of an audlble and: vrsual srgnal

Conditions:

1 The majority of the existing building controis/switches do not conform with the OBC {2012).

2 This includes lighting controls, firm alarm pull stations and thermostats, '

.3 To upgrade the existing controls in the building in conjunction with an extensive renovation requires
extensive electrical upgrades. A total of 80 devices do not currently meet the requirements of OBC 3.8.1.5.

For budget purposes, we have assumed $100/device to change switch/control wiring, patching and
repairs.

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 705,985,2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

10




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.5 Mumination
OBC Requirements

3.8. 1 6. Illumlnatlon

(1) All portions of a. barrternfree path of travel shal! be equipped, to prowda a Ievet of |Iium1nat|on i accordance with
Sentence 3270 (1) S :

HOUET—.

Conditions:

A lllumination levels were tested as part of this study and conform with the requirements of the OBC (2012).

5.6 Access to Parking Areas
0BC Reqwrements

3. 8 2, 2_ _ IAccess to Parking Areas
(a) an exterlcr parklng area, where extenor parklng is provided, and
" {b)- -at least one parking level, ‘wherea passengar elevator.serves an mdoor parktng Ievel

(2} The vehicular entranceto and egress from- at least one parklng level described. in-Sentance ('1) and all areas |ntended

to be used by wheelchair accessible vehicles to gain access ta. a parktng space on that Ievel shall have a vertlca! _
clearance of not less than 2100mm.

- (3) I an exterior | passenger loading zone. ts pro\nded |t shall have

(a)- an-access aisle not 1ess than 2 440 mm W|de and T 400 mm IonQ adjacent and parallel tu the vehlcle pull- up
space; . .-

(b} a curb ramp, where there are. curbs between the ‘access a|sle and the- vehmle puII-up space and

(c) a clearance- helght of not less than 3 600 mm atthe vehlcle pull-up space and along the vehlcle access and egress
routes t .

Conditions:

A The existing building does comply with the OBC (2012)

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC*

NORTH BAY ONTARIC 705,995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

11




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.7 Washrooms Required to be Barrier-Free
OBC Requirements

R

3 8 2.3. Washrooms Required to be Barrier-Free

{(1) A barrier-free path of travel shall be provided to barrier-free washrooms designed to accommodate
" persons with disabilities in conformance with the requirements in Articles 3.8.3.8. to 3.8.3.12,

(2)  The number of universal washrooms conforming to Article 3.8.3.12. provided in a building in which a
washroom is required by Subsection 3.7.4. shall conform to Table 3.8.2.3.A. (See Appendix A.)

' Table 3.8.2.3.A. :
Minitum Number of Universal Washrooms per Bulldmg
Forming Part of Sentence 3.8.2.3.(2)

Number of Storeys in Minimum Number of Universal
Building Washrooms per Building
1103 1. '
4106 ' 2
Over 6 ' 3, plus 1 for each additional
increment of 3 storeys in excess
' of 6§ storeys
Column 1 2

(3) Where a washroom required by Subsection 3.7.4. is provided in a storey that is required by Ariicle 3.8.2.1. to have
a barrier-free path of travel,
{(#) the washroom shall conferm to Articles 3.8.3.8. to 3.8.3.11., and ‘
(b) the number of barrier-free water closet stalls provided in the washroom shall conform fo Table 3.8.2.3.B. (See
Appendix A.)

(4) Except as permitted in Sentence (5), where washrooms in excess of those required by Subsection 3.7.4. are
provided in a storey that is required by Article 3. 8 .2.1. to have a barrier-free path of travel, the additional washrooms
shall be designed to accommodate persons with disabilities in conformance with the requwements of,

(a) Articles 3.8.3.8.10 3.8.3.11., or
(b) Arlicle 3.8.3.12.
{5) Washrooms need ot conform to Sentence (4) provided,
(a) they are located within suites of residential occupancy,
(b) other barrier-free washrooms are provided on the same floor Ieve! within 45 m, or
(c) they dre located in an |nd|\ndua| suite that is,

() used for a business and personal services occupancy, a mercantile occupancy or an industrial
occupancy,

(i) less than 300 nr'in area, and

{ii} completely separated from, and without access to, the remainder of the bufiding.
(See Appendix A)

{6) Where a washroom required by Subsection 3.7.4. is provided in a storey that is not required by Article 3.8.2.1, to
have a barrier-free path of travel, the washroom shall,

{(a) conform to Article 3.8.3.9. and Sentences 3.8.3.10.(5) and 3.8.3.11.(5), and

{b) be provided with at least one ambulatory water closet stali conforming to Sentence 3.8.3.8.(10). (Ses
Appendix A.)

‘CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE ING

MORTH 8AY OMTARIC 705.895.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

12




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

Table 3.8.2.3.B o
Mlmmum Number of Water Closet Stalls Required for Barrier-Free
Formlng F’art of Sentence 3 8. 2 3 (3) :

" Number of Water - | M|n|mum Number- of-iBarrler-'Free:Water Ciosété-StéllS .béraWaEhro'om

' ‘Closets parWashroom ‘ . il o

' 1 to 3 \ 0 where a unlversal washroom is prowded on the same floor Ievel wnhln:' :

; ' . N “45m:of the washroom or:. -

i 1 whera a unlversal Wwashroom-is not prowded on the same floor level 3
S TR B L W|thln45mofthewashroom ' ERREE
4te9 o T T T T

_ .'-:'2'1"to30_a_ R R : - |
-"1.Over30" S 5 plus1foreach adchtlonal |ncrementof 10waterclosets perwashroom:_. !
i R O _ m excess of30waterclosets perwashroam
Column1,:? T ;
Condition:
1 Existing Barrier Free washroom does not conform with OBC 3.8.2..

Proposed Upgrade:

A A new Universal washroom would need to be completed during the extensive renovation to conform with
the requirements of OBC 3.8.2.3.
Estimated Cost of Upgrade:

Est. $ 40,000.00 +HST

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NOATH BAY ONTARIO 705.995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

13




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.8  Accessibility Signs

OBC Regurrement

3 8 3.1 Accessrbihty Sugns B ' ' ' '
(1) Where abuilding is required to have' a bamer-free entrance srgns mcorporatlng the Internatronai Symbol of
‘Access shall be installed-to |ndroate ihe Iocatlon of LT
S (@) - that entrance, - Y : N
“{h) ramps Iocated in: a requrred bamer~free path of travel servmg Hat: entrance and :
(c) an exterlor passenger loading zone: conformrng to= Sentenoe 3 2 .‘"(3), if:one- is, provlded :
ommudate persons W|th drsabllltles

(4) Signs mcorporatrng th nternatlonal Symbol of Aooess shall be in" alied where necessary to |nd|oate the Iocation of
‘abarrier-fres means of egress. =
(5)  Where a wall.mounted tactrle sign. is provlded ina bmldlng, charaoters 8 mbols or: pnotographs on. the sign shall be
. located ot less than-1 200 mm and not miore than 1° 500 mm above the: finighed floor. (See Appendix- A ‘
{6): Whers a wall motinted tactile sign'is provided-in a storey that is not requn'ed by Article 3:8.2,1.to have a barrier+
free path of travel, oharacters symbols or pictographs an the sign shaﬂ conform to Sentence (5) (See ‘Appendix A}

Conditions:

-1 Accessibility signs do not conform with the OBC (2012). There are no accessibility signs in the existing
Barrier-Free entrance '

Proposed Up-grade:
.1 Add accessible signs to the main entrance.

2 Add directional accessible signs with-in interior spaces of building.

Estimated Cost of Upgrade:

Est. $ 1,000.00 + HST

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 705,995,2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

14




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.9

Exterior Walks

OBC Requirements

‘3. 8 3 2. Exterlor Walks _ ' ‘ '
1) Except as provided in Sentence: (2) exterior wa!ks that form part of a barner-free path of travel

~shall, (a} be provided by means of a ccntmucus plane not Interrupted by steps or, abrupt changes
i ievel

g {b) have, a permanent fifm and s|lp—re5|stant suface, : ' L
{6} except as. requrred in Sentence 8. 813 (4) have an: unlnterrupted W|dth of not Iess than 1 100 mm and

a gradient ‘not exceedlng i:in 20,

i C(d) - bel desrgned as'a.ramp where the gradlent is greater than 1 in. 20

(¢) have notless than 1100 mm wide stjface of a different texlure to that surrcundmg |t where the ||ne

- -of travel is level and éven with adjacent walking suffaces, 1.
LA be free. from obstructions for the full wldth of the walk tc a mmrmum herght of 1 980 mm except that

handrails ‘are

.., permitted: to pro;ect net more than 100 mm from elther 5|de mto the clear area, - .
S (g) have a.level area adjacent to the entrance docnn.ray ccnformmg tc Clause 3 8.3:4. (I)(c) and

(3) The curb ramp permitted by Sentence. (2) shall,

{a)have arunning slope conforming to Table 3 8 3. 2 ;
(b) have:a width ofnot less than1. 500'mm exclusrve cf flared smles

*. (&) have a sirface including ﬂaredsmee that shall, .

(i} beslip-resistant;, . -
_ {ii). have a detectable warning surface thatis ccleur— and texture contrasted W|th the adjacent surfaces and
(ili) 'have a smooth transition from the ramp and &djacerit surfaces, and
{d) have flared sides with a slope of not more than 1: 10 where pedestrians are I|kely to walk across them

(4) Curb ramps described i in Sentence (3) do not requlre handrails or guards

Table 3,832, Ramp Rise and Slope
Forming Part of Sentence.3.8.312.(3)

Vertrcal Rise Between ' Slcpe :
Surfaces,mm ST
75162000 - - L0 _1:_1j0tq1:1_2
less than 75 ‘ — '1::8t05_1: :;1'0-
Cclumn1 12

Conditions:

A

The exterior walks conform to the requirement of OBC 3.8.3.2

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 705.995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA
15




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.10 Doorways and Doors
OBC Requirements

3 8.3.3. Doorways and Doors
(1) Every doorway that is located in-a barrier-free path of travel shall.have a clsar width of not less than 860 mm when the door is in the
open position. ((See Appendix A.)
{2) - Except where no bathraom within the suite is at the level of the smte entrance door ta which a barrler-lree path of travel is provided
In dccordance with Sentence 3,8.2.1.(1), thé doorway to at least one bathroom and to-each bedroom at the same level as such bathroom
within a suite of residential 6ceupancy shall have, when the door is in the open posltion, a clear width of not less than,
© {(a) 780 min whare the doar is served by a corridor or space not less than 1 080 i wide, and
{b) 810 ‘mm where the door Is'served by a corridor or space less than 1 060 mm wide. (See Appendix A.)
-(3) Door opening devices that are the only means of aperation shall,
: {a} be designed lo be operable using a closed fist,.and
(b} be mounted nof less than 900 mm and not more than 1 100 mm above the finished floor. (See Appendix A.)
._(4) .Except as permitted by Sentenice (12), every door that provides a barrier-free path of irave! tirough a barrier-free entrance required
by Article 3.8.1.2. shall be equipped with a power daor operator if the entrance serves a building containing a Group A, Group B, Division
-20r3, Group C, Group D or Group E oceupancy.  {See Appendix A}
“{5) Except as permitted by Sentence {12), where a barrier-free entrance required by Article 3.8.1.2. incorporates a vestibule, a door

 lgading from the vestibule into-the floor area shall be equipped with a power door operator in a building conlaining a Group A, Group B,
- Division 2 or 3, Group C, Group D of Group E occupancy.
(6) A'doorshall be equipped with-a power door operator where the door serves,
(a) awashroom for public usé required to be barrier-free, or
{b) a Group A occupancy within a Group C major occupancy apartment bulldlng
(7). Except as permiitted in Sentence (8), and exceptfor ddors with power ‘operators, closers for doors in a barrier-free path of travel shall
be designed to parmilt doors to apen when a force of nol more than 38 N is applied to the handies, push plates or latch-releasing devices
inthe case of exterior doors and 22 N:In the case of interior doors.
{8) Sentence'(7} does not apply to doors at the entrances to dwelling units, or where greater forces are required In order to close and
latch the doors against prevalllng differences in air pressures on opposite sides of the doors. {See
Appendix A.)
{9) Except for doors at the entrances to dwelling units, closers for interior doors i in a barrier-free path of travel shall have a closing
period. .of not less than 3 seconds measured from when the door is in an open position of 70° to the doorway, to when the door reaches a
paint 75 inm from the closed’ position, measured from the leading edge of the latch side of the door, (See Appendix A.)
(10) Unless equipped with a-power door operator, a door in & barrier-free path of travel shall have a clear space ‘on the latch side
extending the helght of the doorway and not less than,
-{a) 600 mm beyond the edge of ihe door apening If the door swlngs toward the approach side, -
{b) 300 mm beyond the edgs of the door apening if the door swirgs away from the approach side, and
(c) 300-mm beyond both sides of a sliding door. (See Appendix A.)
(11) Vestibules located in a barrier-free path of travel,
{a) shall be airanged to allow the mavement.of wheelchairs between doars, and
(b) shall provide,
(i) where the doors inio the vestibulé are in series. -a distance between the doors of atleast 1 500 mm plus the width of any
door that swings into the space [n the path of trave! fram one door to anether, and
{il) where the deors into the vestibule are nof aligned, a turning diameter of 1 500 mm within the vestihule clear of any door
swing. (See Appendix A.)
(12) Cnly the actwa leaf in a multiple Ieaf door In a barrier-free path of travel need eonform to the requirements of this
Article.

(13) Except as provided in Clause 3.8.3.4.(1)( c), the floor surface on each side of a door ina barriar-free path of travel shall be leval
- within a rectangular area,

(a) aswide as the doer plus the clearance required on the Iatch side by Sentence (10), and

-(b) whose dirmension perpendicular to the closed door is not less than the width of the barrier-free path of travel but need not
exceed 1 500 mm.

(14) Where avision panel is provided in a door In a barrier-free path of travel, such panel shall be at least 75 mm in width and be located
so that,
(a) the boltom of the panel is not more than 900 mm above the finished floor, and
{b} the edge of the panel closest to the latch is not more than 250 mm from the latch side of the door,
(iif} the colour and brightness contrast of the strip to the background of the door, and
(lv) the continuity of the strip across the widih of the door.

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NCORTH BAY ONTARID 705.995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

16




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

(15} ‘A door ina barner-free path of travel consrstmg ofa sheet of glass shaII be marked wrth a contmuous apaque stnp
- that,
(ay shali be oolour and bnghtness contrasted to the background of the door
(b) “shallbe at least 50 mm wide, :
{¢) shall be located across the W|dth of the daor at a height of 1 350 mm to 1 500 mm above the finished floor and
- {d)  'may incorporate:a logo or symbol prowded such Iogo or symbol does not diminish,
i) the opacity of the strip, - ‘
(it ~the width of the'strip,
.{18) Where:a power door operator |5 provrded it shall be |nstalled on the latch 5|de 50 as to allow. persons to activate the
opening of the door from’efther side:
(17) Exceptwhere a pro:umity scanning de\noe is |nstallsd in conformance wtth Sentence {18), the control for a
power door operator. required by Sentence (4), (5).or (6) shaII '
(a) ‘have aface dimension: of not less than; :
(l) 150 mim-in diameter where the control. is cwcular or
‘ (i) 50 mm by 100 mm where the. control'is roctangular
(b) be opetable ‘using a closed fi st
(c) be located sothat, SRR g
(l) its'centre is Iocatad not less than 900 mm and not more than 1: 100 mm from the flnlshed floor or ground .
(I|) it extends from ot more than 200 mm to riot less than 900 mm above the fmlshed floor or
: ground, {See Appendlx A)
{9 be located not less than 600 mm and not more than 1 500 mm beyond tho door swing where the door opens
‘towards the control, '
" {e) ' be located: ina’ clearly wsrble posmon and : :
() contain & sign Incorporating the International Symbol of Access
{18) ‘A proximity scanning dev:ce that actlvates a power door shall be capable of detecting a person in a wheelchair,
{See Appendix A} -
{19) A normally occupled floor area that is hot reqwred by Article 3. 8.2; 1 to have a barrier-froe path of travel
shall comply with the following requtrements
(a)  all doorways in public: corridors’ in the normally occup|ed floora re a- shall comply with Sentence (1),
(b} "door opening devices that aré the only means of operatlon on doors in the- normatly occupied f ﬂoorarea shall
_ comply with- Sentence (3) (See Append|x A)
{c) wherea \nsmn panel is prowded ina door in the normatly occupled ﬂoor area the panel shall comply with
Sentence(14), :
(d} “ddors consrstlng ofa sheet of glass |n 'the normally occupled floor area shaII comply with Sentence (15), and
(e)  wihere a power door operator is lnsta|led fordaors inthe normally accupied floor . area, it shall comply with
Sentences (16) and (7). y

Conditions:

N Extensive review of all existing doorways in a barrier-free path of travel was undertaken.

2 Table 11.5.1.1.14 in OBC (2012) exempts the owner from upgrading the width of the existing doorways as
long as the existing opening is not less than 810mm wide.

.3 Four (4) existing door and frames require upgrading to comply with deor and frame width and hardware
requirements.

Proposed Up-grade:

Proposed upgrade of existing doors to match current code {note: work is not required as part of an extensive

renovation as long as the clear width opening of a door is not less than 810mm.

A 4 doors
Estimated Cost of Uparade: $4,000.00 per door x 4 doors EST. $16,000.00

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 706,995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA
17




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.11. Ramps

OBC Reguirements

L AU T AR S A A o R A T 0 I S TS L T SR SR

.3.8.3.4. Ramps
:{1) Ramps located in a barrer-free path of travel shall,
.-{a) have a minimum width of 300 mm between handrails,
> (b) have a maximum gradient of 1in 12,
(c) have a lavel 'area of at least 1 670 mm by 1-670 mm at the top and bottom of a ramp and where a door Is located
in a ramp, so that the level area extends at least 600 mm beyond the latchside of the door opening, except that where
the door opéns away from the ranip, the area extending beyond the latch Slde of the door opening may be reduced to
300mm,
(d) have a level area at least 1 670 mm long and at least the same width as the ramp, -
(i} atintervals of not more than 9 m along its length, and
(i} where there is a change of 90° ar more in the direction of the ramp,
(e) except as provided In Sentence (2), be equipped with handrails on both sides that shalll,
{i} be continuously graspable along their entire length and have circular cross-section with an outside diameter
not less than 30 mm- and not more than 40 mm; or any non-circular shape with a graspable pertion that has a
perimeter not less than 100 mm and not more than 156 mm and whose Iargest cross-sectlonal dlmensmn is not
‘more than 57 mm,
{i} benot less than 865 mm and not more than 965 mm hlgh measured vertlcaily from the surface of the
ramp, except that handrails not meetlng these requtrements are permitted prowded they are |nsta1led in addition to
the required handrail,
{iii) be terminated in a manner that will not obstruct pedestrian travel or create a hazard,
{iv) extend horizontally not less than 300 mm beyond the top and bottom of the ramp,
{v)} be provided with a clearance of not less than 50 mm between the handrail and any wall or guard to which it is
attached, and
(vi) be designed and constructed such that handrails and their supports will withstand the loading values cbiained
from the no concurrent application of a concentrated load not less than 0.9 kN applied at any point and in any
direction for all handrails and & uniform load not less than 0.7 kN/m applied in any direction to the handrail,
{f) except.as provided in Sentence (2), have a wall or a guard on both sides and where a guard is provided the guard
shall,
(i). be not iess than |1 070 mm measured vertically to the top of the guard from the ramp surface, and
{ii} .be designed so that no member, attachment or. apening located between 140 mm and 900 mm above the
ramp surface being protected by the guard will facilitate climbing,
(g) be provided,
{i) with a curb at least 50 mm high on any side of the ramp where no solid enclosure or solid guard is prowded
and
(it} with railings or other barners that extend to W|th1n 50 mm of the finished ramp surface or have a curb not less
than 50 mm high, and
(h) except as provided in Sentence (2), where the ramp is wider than 2 200 mm, have an intermediate handrail with a
clear width of 900 mm between the intermediate handrail and one of the handrails described in Clause ().
(2) Where a ramp serves as an aisle way for fixed seatlng. the requirements for handrails in Clauses ((e) and (h) and
for walls or guards in Clause ()(f) need not apply. {See Appendix A.)
(3) Floors or walks in-a barrier-free path of travel having a slope steeper than | in 20 shall be designed as ramps. (See
Appendix A.)

T B . T A 3 e D 5 34 B 8 £ I B U PRSI AL 0 o Y, 4T 0 T T £ TN IS SR +r e e T i T 1 SR M R DR i S i L

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY OMNTARIO 705.985.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

18




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.12 Passenger Elevating Devices

OBC Requirements

' 3.8.3.5. Passenger Elevatlng Devices e ; ' C '
(1) A passenger e1e\.ra_t|ng dewce referred toin: Artlcle 3. 8 21 shall conform to CSA 8355 "LiftS for Persons wnth
Physmal Dlsabmtles : i o ) ; ; .

Conditions:
A Except for extensive renovations or a 2 storey addition passenger elevating devices are not required.

Estimated Cost of Upgrade:

Est. $ 180,000.00 + HST

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO  705.995,239% CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

19




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.13 Spaces in Seating

OBC Requirements

3, 8 3. 6. Wheelchalr Spaces and Adaptable Seatmg : A
(1) Spaces desrgnated forwheelchair use reqmred by Sentence 3, 8 21 (4) haltb‘e,‘ -
{a)-clear and Tevel: oF’ level With: removable seats, . -
(b) not less than ‘900:mim wide and not less than, : ' ' i
) 1’525 mm long whera designed to- permlt awheelcharr to enter from a S|de approach and
{iiy -1 220" mim: !cng where deagned to permlt awheetchalr to enter from the front or rear of the space
_ {c) arranged o that; '
(iy “at leasttwo-of the desrgnated spaces are sn;ie by side; and:
(i} &t least one fixed seat for a companion is-located beside, ‘
{A). each group, cf desrgnated spaces if tw0 or more de5|gnated spaces are arranged slde by srde ina
- group, ‘and: : .
- (BY “each deS|gnated space that is not part of a group descnbed ln Sub sub clause (A),
"{See Appendlx A): '
~ {d) located- adjomung a barrrer free path of travel wnthout Infringing on egress from any row” of seatmg or any aisle

_requiremerits, and :

{e)situated, as part of the deagnated seatlng plan to prowde a chorce of wewlng locatron and a c|ear view of the

event taking place. . .

{2} Fixed seats demgnated for adaptable seaﬂng reqmred by Sentence 3.8.2. 1 (4) shaII be, :
(a) located adjoining a barrrer-free path of travel wlthout |nfr|ng|ng on egress frorn any row of seatlng or any aisle
requiiremerits,

{b) equipped with a movable or removable armrest on the side of the seat adjomlng the bamer—free path of travel,
‘and

(&) situated, as part of: the desrgnated seatmg plan, to prowde a ch0|ce of wewmg locatron and a clear wew of the
event taking place.

“(3)- Ivan assembly occupancy wrth fixed seals, space shall be provrded for the storage of wheelchalrs and mob|||ty

assistive-devices in accordance with the following requirements: .

{a) .atleastone storage space fiot less thar 810-mm by I:370. mm shall be provnded where the assembiy :
occupangy | has not more than 200-fixed seats and at least two stich storage spaces shaII be pro\nded where the
assembly occupancy has more than 200 fixed seats, and -

(b) . the'storage space or spaces shall be located on the same Ievel and in proxrmlty to the spaces des|gnated for
wheelcharr use and soats desrgnated for adaptable seatlng ' :

Conditions:
A Not Applicable

CRITCHLEY HiLL ARCHITECTURE INC

MNORTH BAY ONTARIO 705.995.2381 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

20




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.14 Assistive Listening Devices

OBC Requirements

I P

3.8.3.7. Assnstive L|stenmg Dev:ces

(1) In buildings of-assembly occupancy, all classrooms, aud|tcr|a meeting rooms and theatres with an area of more than

100 m? and an occupant load of more than 75 shall be equipped with ass:stlve listening systems encompassmg the entlre
seatlng area. (See Appendlx A ) o

Conditions:
A Not Applicable

5.15 Water Closet Stalls

_ OBCv ReqL mrements

3.8.3.8. Water Closet Stalls
(1 )Every barrier-free Wwater: closet stall in'a washroom describad in Sentence 3.8.2.3.(3) or {4} shall
(a) have a clear turing space at least 1 500 mm'in d1ameter (See Appendrx AY.
(b) be eguipped with a door that shall,
{i) be capable of belng latched from the inside with a mechanism that is operable -using a closed f‘ st,
{ity when the door is in an open position, have a clear opening of at least 860 mm,

(i) swing outward, unless 820 mm by 1440 mm clear floor area is provided within the stall to- -permit the door
to be closed without Inferfering: with the wheelchair, (See-Appendix A.) -

(iv) be provnded with aprlng—type or gravity hinges -so-that the door closes automatlcally,

(v) be provided. W|th a-door pull-on both sides of the door, near the latch ‘side of the door, located at a helght
not less than900:mm-and not more than; 1100 mm above the fi n|shed floor, (See Appendix A)

(vi) be aligned with a clear transfer space required by Subclause (2)(a)(u) or Clause (2)(b}, and

{vii) be capable of havmg the Iatch requrred by Subclause (i) released frorn the. out5|de Ih case of an
-emergency, "

(c) be equlpped with: 2 water closet conformmg to-Article 3.8.3.9. that is Iocated in: accordance with Clausé (2)(a) or
" {b), (d) Reserved
(e) be equipped with a coat hook mounted not more than 1 200 mm abcve the fmlshed flooron.a s:de wali and
projecting not more than 50 mm-from:the wall,
- (D) have a clearance of at Jeast 1 700 mm belween the outside of the stall face and the face of an in- swinging

- washroom door and-1 400 - mm between the outsude of the stall face. and. any wall- mounted fixture or other
obstruction, (See Appendix A. ) and

{9) whereatollet paper d|spenser is prowded provrde a dispenser that is,:
{i) wall mounted, - -

(i) located below.the grab bar,
(i) in line-with ornot more than 300 mm'in front of the seat, and
{(iv) not Iess than 600 mm above the flmshecl floor.
(2) Awater closet described in Clause {1)(c) shall be
{a) located so that, :
(i) the centre line of the water closet is not less than 460 mm and not more than 480 mm from one side wall, and

(it} aclear transfer space at least 900 mm wide and 1 500 mm deep is provided on the other 5|de of the water
closet, or

{b) located so that a clear transfer space at least 900 mm wide and 1 500 mm deep is provided on each 5|de of the
water closet. (See Appendlx A)

1 (3) Where a water closet Is located in accordance with Clause (2)(a),
{a) a grab bar conforming to Sentences (5) and (7) shall be prowded on the side wall referred to in Subclause

(2)(8)(1)

i "'“'"r"i'iJT'i'fl"i"'\".‘l'l“\"r"'“"’"'ﬂf‘f‘i‘fﬁ’\'f&' U W WD GO O ST E OV R LRG




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

L LTS 00 DA I L SR e P I P 1y b L

(b) a fold-down grab bar may be provided and, i one is provided, it shall conform fo Sentence (8) and be provided on
the side of the water closet opposite the grab bar described in Clause (a), and
(c) agrab bar conforming to Sentences (6) and {7} shall be provided on the wall behind the water closet. (See
‘Appendix A.) ‘
(4) Where awater closet is located in accordance with Clause (2)(b}),
(a) a fold-down grab bar conforming to Sentence (8) shalt be provided on each side of the water closet, and (b} a
grab bar conforming to Sentences ( 6} and (7} shall be provided on the wall behind the waler closet. (See A-3.8.3.8.(3)
In Appendix A.)
{5) A grab bar described in Clause (3){a) shall,
_(a) be continuous L-shaped with 750 mm long horizontal and vertical components, and
(b) be wall mounted with the horizontal compenent 750 mm above the finished fioor and the vertical component
©. 150 mm in frant of the water closel.(See A-3.8.3.8(3) and A-3.8.3.8.(5) in Appendix A.)
(6) A grab bar described in Clause (3)(c) or (4)(b) shall,
(a) be at least 600 mm in length, and
{b) be wall mounted horizontally from 840 mm to 920 mm above the finished floor and, where the water closet has a
" water tank, be wall mounted 150 mm above the tank.(See A-3.8.3.8.(3) in Appendix A.)
(7} A grab bar described in Clause {3){a) or (c) or (4)(b) shall,
(a) be installed to resist a load of at least 1.3 kN applied vertically or horizontally,
(b) be not less than 35 mm and not more than 40 mm in diametar,
(c) have a clearance cf not tess than.3 8 mm and not more than 50 mm from the wall to the inside surface of the grab
. bar, and
(d) have a slip-resistant surface (See A-3.8.3.8.(3) in Appendlx A
{8) A fold-down grab bar described in Clause (3)(b) or {4)(a) shall,
{a) bemounted on the wall behind the water closet,
{i} with the herizontal component 750 mm above the finished floor, and
(i) not less than 390 mm and not more thah 410 mm from the centre line of the water closet,
(b) {2} not require a force of more than 22.2 N to pull it down, be at least 750 mm in length,
(d) (e)(f) be installed to resist a load of at least 1.3 kN applied vertically or horizontally, be not less than 35 mm and not
more than 40 mm in diameter, and have a slip-resistant surface, (See A-3.8.3.8.(3) and A-3.8.3.8.(8) in Appendix A.)
{9) A fold-down grab bar installed in accordance with Sentence {8} is permitted to encroach Into,
{a) the clear turning space described In Clause (I){z), or
{b) = clear transfer space described in Subclause (2)( a)(ii} or Clause {2)(b).{See A-3.8.3.8.(3) in Appendix A.)
(10) Where an ambulatory water closet siall is required by Sentence 3.8.2.3.(6),-it shall,
{a) beatleast{ 500 mm in depth and be not less than 890 mm and not more than 940 mm in width,
(b) be equipped with a door that shall,
(i) be capable of being latched from the liside with a mechanism that is operable using a closed fist, (i) when the
door isin.an open position, have:a clear opening of at least 810 mm,
(i} swing outward, untgss the minimum dimensions in Clause (a) are not located within the door swing, (iv) be
provided with spring-type or gravity hinges so that the door closes automatically,
(v) be provided with a door pull on both sides of the door, near the latch side of the door, located at a height not less
than 900 mm and not more than 1 100 mm above the finished floor, and
{vi} be capabie of having the latch required by Subclause (i) released from the outside In the case of an emergency,
(c} be equipped with a water closet conforming to Article 3.8.3.9. and located so that its centre line is centred between
the partition walls,
(d) be equipped on each side of the water closet with grab bars conforming fo Clause (3)(a), and
(e) be equipped with a coat hook conforming to Clause (1 )(e). (See Appendix A.}

Conditions:

A Not applicable

CRITCHLEY HILL. ARCHITECTURE INC

MORTH BAY ONTARIO 705295.2381 CRITCHLEYHILLCA
22

e I S AR L Y LI LS IG5 Lt ST S A D TR S S BT T A L SR T




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.16 Water Closets
OBC Reguirements

3.8.3.9. Water Closets (See Appendix Al
(1). A'water closet descnbed in Clause 3.8.3.8.(1{c) or (I0)(c) or 3.8.3. 12 (I)(d) shall,
(a) beequipped with a seat located af not less than 430 mm and-riot more than 485 mm above the f|nlshed floor, .
(b) beequippedwith hand operated flush]ng controls that. are easﬂy accessmle toa wheelchair user of be
automaﬂcally operable, _ .
- ). be-equipped witha back support where there is rio-seat lid or tank and (See Append;x A){d) nothave a spnng-
_activated seat. {See Appendix A.) v

(2) ‘Hand-opérated ﬂushmg controls reqmred by Ctause (1)(b) shaII be operable uslng a closed fist and with a force of niot
- more: than 222 N co

Conditions:

A Not applicable

5.17 Urinals
OBC Requirements

3. 8. 3.10.: Urinals ‘
(1) Where more than one urlnal is prowded ina washroom described in Sentence 3 8 2.3, (3) or (4); at Ieast one urinal
. shall be,
(a) wall mounted wnth the rim located not more than 430 mm above the flnlshed roor or.:
(b): floor mounted, with the rim level with the finished ﬂoor (See Appendix A)
(2) A.urinal deseribed in Sentence {dy shall have o
(a) no step infront, ' e o
(b) a vertlcally motinted: grab bar |nstalled on' each side of the unnal that
(i) Is not less than 300.mm: Iong,
- (i) . has its centre line.1 000 mm above the f|n|shed ﬂoor '
(Jiiy s located not less. than 380 mm and not more than 450 mim measured honzontally from the vertlcal centre .
line of theé urinal, and" .
(iv)- comptles wilh- Sentence 3.8.3; 8 (7) and ’ o
‘ (c) a minimum depth'of 345 mm.measured from the outer face of the urinal rimto the: back of the fixiure.
(3) Where mantial flush’ controfs are providéd for a unnal descrlbed in Sentence (1) the flush controls shall: be
{a) operable using a closed fist; and -
'(b)  mounted:no hlgher than 1.200.mm-above the finished floor e
E (4) Where privacy screens are. instailed fot-a uiinal deseribed in-Senténce (1) they shall,
{a)-. be mounted a minimum of-460 mm from the-centre line of the wrinal, and .
{b) havea clearance of at Ieast 50:mm from the grab bars. reqwred by Clause’ (2)(b)
' (5)-Where more than one urinal is provided in a washroom described in'Sentence 3.8.2.3. (6) at Ieast one urinal
conformmg to- Sentences (1) to (@) shall be provlded in the washroom. - .-

Conditions;
A Existing condition does not conforms to OBC 2012.
2 Elevation of urinals to be lowered. Add grab bar.

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NCRTH BAY ONTARID 705.895.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

23




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

Proposed Up-grade:

N Required only during extensive renovation.

Estimated Cost of Upgrade:
Est. $1,500 + HST

5.18 Lavafories
OBC Reguirements

- 3.8.3.11. Lavatortes (See Appendix A) - h ' ‘
(1) A washroom deséribed in Sentence 3.8.2.3.(2), (3) or (4) shall be prowded with a Iavatory that shall
() be located so that the distance between the céntre ling of the lavatory and the side wall is not less than 460 mm, (b) be-
. mounted so that the top of the lavatory Is not more than 840 mm above the finished floor
. {e) .havea clearance beneath the. Iavatory not Iess than, - :
(i} 920 mm wide, . -
(h) 735 mm. high at the front edge _ .
(ili) :685 mm high at a point 205 mm' back from the front edge; and : '
vy - 350 mm high from a polnt 300 mm back from tie front edge to the wall, (See Appendlx A. ) . : :
. (d) have insulated pipes where they would othennnse present a bum hazard or have water supply temperature lrmlted toa
© - maximum of 43°C, (See Appendix A.)
{e) : be equipped with faucets that have lever type handles wrthout spting loadlng or operate automa’ucally and that are
located so that the distance fromthe centre line of the faucst to the edge of the basrn or, where the basin is mounted ina
vanity; to the-front’ edge of the vanity, is.not | more: thari 485 fim,
~{f) “have a minimum 1 370.mm deep floor space.to allow for a forward approach, of whlch a maximum of 500 mm
can be lecated undet the lavatory, {See Appendix A.) (g} - have a.s0ap dispenser that is,
(1) located to be accessible to-persons in wheselchairs, : :
(i) located so that the- dlspensmg height is hot more than 1200 mm: above the finished floor (Iu) Iocated not more -
than 610 mm, measured horlzontally, from the edge of the lavatory
{iv) . operable with oné hand, and "~ . ' U o ‘
{(h) " have atowael d|spenser or other hand drylng eqmpment that ls (l) Iocated to be accessrble to persons in
- whealchairs, :
(i)’ lecated so- that the dtspensrng helght is not more than 1200 mrn above the fi nrshed floor (m) operable with one ‘
- hand, and’
' -(|v) Iocated not more than 610.mm, measured honzontally, from the edge of the lavatory
(2) tf-mirrors.are installed in a washroom described in.Sentence 3.8.2; 3.2), (3) or (4) at Ieast one m|rror shall be, .
(a) instaliedabove a lavatory required by Sentence (1), and. -
(b).. mountéd with its bottom edge not more than 1 000 mm above the f|n|shed floor or |ncl|ned to the vert|cal to be usable by a
. person ina wheelcharr
(3)  If.dispensing or hand operated washroom accessorles except those Iocated in water closet stalls or descnbed in
Clause {I)(g)..are-provided, they shall be mounted so that, -
(a) .the dispensing: herght is-not:less than 900 mimi ‘and: not more than 1200 mm above the ftnrshed floor .
~+(bY " the controls or operatrng mechamsms are mounted not- less than 900 mm-and, not more than 1 200 mm above the
- finished floor, and-
{c):. aminimum 1 370 mm; deep floor space Is provrded in front of the controls or operatrng mechamsms to allow for a front
approaoh
(4) Where a shelf is |nstatled above a Iavatory required by Sentence (1), itshall,

~(a} belocated not more than 200 mm above: the top of the lavatory and not more than1 100 mm above the finishied floor.
and :

(b) "~ project ot more than 100 mim from. the wall,

{5) A washroom described in Sentence 3.8.2.3.(6) shallbe provided wrth a Iavatory conformrng to Clauses {I}e), (g)
. and (h)

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 705.995.2391 CRITCHELEYHILL.CA

24




 BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

Canditions:

A

Space in front of existing vanities is non-conforming in designated barrier free washroom.

Proposed Up-grade:

.1 Relocate vanities to provide requirements of OBC 2012.
Estimated Cost of Upgrade:; EST. $8,000.00 + HST

5.19 Universal Washrooms

OBC Reguirements

(2)

3.8.3.12; Universal Washrooms
(1) -Auniversal washroom room shall,-

“{b}. -have a door that'is capable of belng locked from the msu:le and released from the outS|de in case of emergency

©(c). have one- Iavato‘r‘y ‘conformmg to Sentences 3.8.3.11.(1), (3) and (4)

..(e} " have grab bars conformlng o,

: (h) be demgned to perm|t a wheelchair to turm in an open space not Iese than 1 700 mm in dlameter

- audible and visual signal will activate in letters at least 25 mm high -with a5 mm stroke and that is posted above |
the emergency button. (See Appendix A) !

-{a) be'served by a barrier-free path of travel

and that has,

() adraspable. Iatch operatlng mechantsm Iocated net less than 900 mm and not more than 1 000 .mm above the
finished floor, . . .

(i) i Itis an otitward swinging door, a door pull not less than 140 mm long located on the |ne|de so that its mldpolnt
i$.riot:less. than 200°'mm and not mare than 300 mm from the latch side of tHe dcor and not Iees than .

~900:mm and not rore than'1 : 100 mm above the finished floor, and

(i) “if itis an outward swinglng door a door closer, spring: hlnges or gra\nty hingeés, so that the door closes
automatlcally, :

(d): havecnhe water closet eonforrnlng to Article 3.8. 3.9. that is located in accordance W|th Clause 3, 8 3 8 (2)(a) or
(b}, (See Appendix'A.)

(i) - Sentence 3.8,3.8.(3), If the water closet is located in accordance with Clause-3.8.3:8: (2)(a) oF
(i) Sentence 3.8.3.8. {4), if the water closet is located in accordarice with: Clause 3.8.38, (2)(b)
(f) have no internal dimension betwéen walls that is.less than 1 700 mm,
(g) Hhavea coat hook that conforms to Clause 3.8.3.8. (I)(e) anda shelt that js- Iocated not more than 1 100 mm

- {iy - be provided W|th a door eqmpped with a power door operator if the door | i5 eqmpped with a se|f—closmg
dewce ‘ .

G}  be provided with & mirror '
: (1) . installed above a lavatory deecrlbed in Clause (I)(c) and

{ii). mounted with'its bottom edge not more than 1 000 mm above the f|n|shed floor or. |ncllned to the vertical to
be usable by aperson.in a wheelchair, and :

(k) have lighting control!ed by a motion sensor confo'rmlng to Sentence 1224 1 (2) (See Appendlx A. )
A universal washroor shall have,

(a} an emergency call system that conelsts of audible and visual signal dewces |n5|de and outelde of the
washtoom’ that are activated by a control device inside the washroom, and
{(b) an emergency. sign that contains the words In the event of an emergency push emergency button and

st

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 705,995.2281 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

25




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

(3) Aclear space not Iess than 810 min wide and 1 830 mm Iong shall be prowded in eaoh unwersal washroom for.an
adult-size change table. (See Appendix A)

(4) . Where the clear space provided for an adult—mze ohange table is adjacent to a waII relnforoement' s‘ha‘ll'b‘e rnstalled in

the wall to permit the future installation of the change table. ; . :

(5) Where an:adult-size: change tableis installed; it.shall, ‘ ; R
(a) when fully: loaded, have a sirface helght above the finished floor that can be adjusted from between 450 mm
and 500-mm at the low range to between: 850 mm and 900 mi at, the hlgh range
(b) be designed to carry a:minimum load of:1. 33 kN, '
{€) havea clear floor epace paratlel to the Ieng side of the tabte not Iess than 760 mm wrde and 1 500 mm: Iong.
and - : ‘
(d) In the case ofa fold-down table

[} be installed so that it does not encroach Into a ciear transfer space descrlbed |n Ctause 3 8 38 (2)( a)or (b)
and o . : . :

(||) have | no operatmg mechanssms hrgher than 1 200 mm,

(6} . A-universal washroom need not conform to Sentences (3) and (4) if,
- (a)  itis located in an, mdrwdual suite that,

(i} is.used for an assembly occupancy, 8 busmess andpersonal serwces occupancy, a mercanme
. occupangy or an rndustrraf ‘octupancy, and ' :

{i): ‘meets one of the. fotlowmg requtrements ‘ D

(A) it is located in a building that is less than 300 m2 in buridmg area, of . - '

(B) itis Iess than 300 m2 in-area, |f tocated in a burtdmg that Is at least 300 m2 . bmldmg
area, or -

{b) - another universal. washroom conformmg to this Artlcle is provided on the same floor Ievel withm 45 a
m. (See Appendrx Al : ‘ :

Conditions:

A No universal washroom has been provided in the building.

Proposed Up-grade:

A New universal washroom would be necessary during extensive renovation or building addition.
Estimated Cost of Upgrade:

Est. $40,600.00 + HST

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 705,995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.GA

26




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.20 Shower and Bathtubs

QOBC Requirements

'3.8.3.13.. Showers and Bathtubs ' T
(1) Except within a suite of residential occupancy, if showers are prowded in- a bu||d|ng, the number of barner—free
. showers shall conform to Table 3.8.3: 13 (See Appendlx A : .
Lo Table38313 . :
Mimmum Number of Barrier-Freg Showers
T Formtng Pait of Sentence 3.8.3: 13(1)

Numberof ‘ Mlnlmum Numberofshowers '

Showers Provided ina. Requiréd to be Barriér-Free-
Group L R I
o Ov.'er 7o 1 plus1foreach add|t|onat
Lt mcrement of7. showers Inagroup
"--‘Golumn1"' A .9 :

(2) A barner-free shower required by Sentonce (1) shall
{a)  benot less than 1 500 mm wide and 900 mm deep, . ' ' :
{b) -have aclear floor space at the entrance to the shower not less than 900 mm. deep and the same width as the

shower, except that fixtures are permitted to prOJeot into- that space prowded they do not reetnct access to the
shower, (See Appendix A.) .

(¢} have a'slip-resistant floor surface, e o

(d) have a threshold that is level with the adjacent flnlShed floor ora bevelled threshold not more than 13 mm
higher than. the adjacent finished floor, :

(e) ' have a hinged seat that is:not spnng-loaded ora t"xed seat that shall be

(i) riot less than 450 mm wide and. 400 mm deep, - ’

(ity mounted not less than 430 mm and riot more than 485. mm above the flnlshed floor s

(iil)..designed to.carry a minimum load of 1.3 kN,

{iv} ‘focated so that the edge of the seat is within 500 mm of the shower controls, (See Appendlx A
(f) have a wall- mounted contintious L-shaped grab bar conforming to- Sentence 3.8.3.8. {0 Iocated on the same wall
as the controls, with the horlzontal component of the grab bar, ‘ .

0} mounted not more than 850 mm above the finished floor; and’ '
(i) located so that thé end of the horizontal component is wuthm 100 mm from the edge of the shower seat, (See
- Appendix A.) .

_{g) -have a pressure- equallzing or thermostatlc m|xmg valve contro!led by a Iever or other dewce operable using a
closed fist from the seatéd Rosition,

from. the seated posrtion and equped with-a support so that it can operate as.a fixed shower head and
(i)  have fully recessed soap holders that can be reached from the seated position, .

A3) Indlvrdual showers that aire provided for use by patients or resrdents in butldlngs of Group B D|v|sron 2 or3:
occupancy shall conforrn to Sentence (2) :

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 705.995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA
27




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

(4) lndlwdual bathtubs that are prowded for the use of patrents or resrdents in bundsngs of Group R, Division'2 or 3
ocgupancy: shall have,
(a) faucets that have lever type handles wrthout spnng Ioadrng or that operate automatloally,
-(b). . faucet handles that are located so as 10 be usable by a person seated in the bathtub, .~
* (c) unless the bathtub is free:standing, a continuous. L-shaped grab bar oonformmg to: Sentenoe 3 8 3.8.(7) with
-900-mm Iong horizantal -and vertical.components mountéd with,
(|) the:horizontal ‘companent Iocated not less than 150'mm-and not more. than 200 mm above and parallel to. the
rim of thé bathtib, and-. ‘
(iy the \rertmal oomponent located not: Iess than 300 mm and not more than 450 mm from the control end of the
.’ bathtub; and -
(d) unless the. bathtub |s free-standlng, a grab bar conformlng to Sentence 3 8. 3 8. (7) that is located at each end of
“the bathtub’ and s, o : . .
() at Ieast 750 mm long. ' :
“ iy mounted vertically-from a pomt 200 mm above the rim of the bathtub and (iu) mounted wrthm 150 mm from -
-thé edge of the: bathtub, measured horizontally. (See:Appendix A.)

(5) Where a barrier-free bathtub is‘provided, a clear floor space at least 900 'mm W|de and 1 440 mm Iong shall be
pro\rlded along the full Iength of the bathtub : N

Conditions:

A Existing showers provided (1 for males and 1 for females as required by the Ministry of Labour and
complies with the OBC 2012 requirements.

5.21 Shelves or Counters for Telephones

OBC Reguirement

3 8 3 15.. Shelves or. Counters for Telephones (See Appendlx A .
{1} Where more than one telephone is provrded for publlo use, & built-in shelf or counter shall be provudecl for at least one
telephone .
-_(2) Ashelf or counter descnbed in Sentenoe o)) shall
(&) " 'belevel,- :
- (b} " benptless than 500 mm WIde and 350 mm deep, and
(o) have, for each telephone provided, a clear space that; ' ‘
(i) Is ot less than 810 mm wide and 1 370 mm deep, centred on the telephone and
- iy has o obstruction within 250 mm above the surface.
(3) : Thetop sufaceof & section of the shelf or counter described in Sentence (1) shall,
‘{a) belocated riot less than-775.mmi and not more than 875 mm from. the flnlshed floor and
(b).. havea knee space not less than 740 mm hlgh S
{(4) ‘Wherea wall- hung telephone is provrded above the shelf or oounter section descfibed in Sentence (3), tshall be
located:so that the reéceiver-and-coin or card-slot.aré not more than 1200 riim from the finishad floor.
- {B) " ‘Where more than: .one telephone is provided for public use in a normally occupied floor area that is not requlred by:

 Article3.8.2.1. 1o liave a barrier-free path of travel, a buift-in shelf or counter that oonforms to Sentences (2) (3) and (4)
shall be prowded for atleast one telephone : :

Conditions: -

.1 Notapplicable. No public phones exist.

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO  705.995.23%91 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

28




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.22 Drinking Fountains

OBC Requirements

-3.8. 3 16. Drmkmg Fountalns (See Appendix-A. )

(1) " Where more than-one drlnking fountarn is prowded at Ieast one ‘shall be a barrrer-free fountain that conforms to
Sentencesi(2) and (3, - . .

(2) ¥y barrler-free dri 3 ountaln shall . '
' (a) “have a'spout d hear.the front of the’ un|t not more: than 915 mm above the flnlshed floor '
‘(b) be eqmpped:’wtth controls that are easrly operated from a wheelohalr usmg one hand with a force of not more than

() prOJect the water at Ieast 100 mm h|gh
: (d) provide the water sfréam at a vertical angle of up to,
R {r) 30° where the spout Is Iocated less than 75, mm from the front of the fountarn, or
: (e) be detectable by a‘'cané at a Ievel at or below 680 mm from the finished fioor, and
...(f)  where the drinking fountain is cantrtevered megt the following: requrrements
{i). be maunted:niot more than 915 mm above the finished floor, = ' .
- iy provrde a clearance helght under thé fountain of notless than 735:'mm above the flnlshed floor
“(illy have a clear depth under the fountain of not less than 450 mm,.
{Iv). have @ clear width: under the fountain of not less than 760 mm, ..
{v} ‘have a-toe clearance height under the fountain of at legst 350 mm above the frnlshed floor fram a pomt
300 am back froni the front edge to'the wall, and
(vl have a depth-at the base of the fountain of at least 700 mm '
3y A barrrer-free drrnkrng fountaln required by Senténce (1) shall have a clear floor space in front of or adjaoent to, the
fouritain that is a minimum of 810 mm deep and-1 370 mm wide.
(4) Where more than.one drinking fountain is provlded in a normally ocoupied floor area that is not required by Artlcle e

3.8.2.1.to havea barrrer—free path of trave!, at least one shall be a barrler-free fountain that conforms to Sentences (2)
and (3}

Conditions:

A Not applicable

5.23 Platforms

OBC Reguirements

_ 3 8.3.17. Platforms

(1) A tactrle attention indicator conformrng to Article 3.8.3. 18 shall be installed along any edge ofa ptatform that i |s
{a) not protected. by a guard, and
(b) - higher than 250 mm above the f|n|shed roor or ground or sloped steeper than 1-in 3.

__(2) Sentence (1) does not apply to the front edges of stages

Conditions:
A Not Applicable

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

MORTH BAY ONTARIO 705.995.2391 GCRITCHLEYHILL.CA
29




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

5.24 Tactile Attention Indicators

OBC Reguirements

3 8. 3 18. Tactlle Attentlon Indicators ' :
(1) Where' a tactlle altention indicator is required, it shall. conform to Sentence (2) and Clauses 4 1.1, and 412, of ISO

- 23599, "Asslstive Products for Blind and Visien-impaired Persons ~Tactile Walking: Surface Indlcators":-
(2) The depth of the tactlle attenhon indicator shall benot Iess than 300 mm and. not more than 610 mm.

Conditions: .
A Existing condition does not conform fo OBC (2012)

2 Existing stairs require a tactile surface indicator at interior and exterior conditions.

3 Upgrade required if exiensive renovation or addition.

Proposed Up-grade:
A Install tactile indicators at top and bottom of stairs and high contrast stair tread nosing.

Estimated Cost of Upgrade:

Est. $12,000.00 + HST

CRITCHLEY HilLL ARCHITECTURE INC

MORTH BAY ONTARIO 705.995.2381 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA

30




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

6.0 Accessibility Standards for Ontarians with Disabilities Act design of
public spaces (DOPS)

6.1  Outdoor Public Use Eating Areas

Conditions:
1 Notapplicable.

6.2  Outdoor Play Spaces
Conditions:

N Mot applicable.
6.3 Exterior Paths of Travel

Conditions:
A Walkways meet the Standards for DOPS.

Proposed Up-grade:
A None required

6.4  Off street Parking

Conditions:

A Off street parking has been provided and meets the Standards for DOPS.

Proposed Up-grade:
Ja None required

6.5 Service Counters

Conditions:

A Customer service counters has been provided and meets DOPS standards.

6.6  Fixed Queuing Guides

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

MORTH BAY ONTARIC 705.995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA
31




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

Conditions:
A Not Applicable

6.7 Waiting Areas

Conditions:
A Conforms. Existing waiting areas have sufficient waiting space and have sufficient areas for turning
radius.

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

NORTH BAY ONTARIO 705.995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA
32




BARRIER FREE
ASSESSMENT STUDY

7.0 Conclusions and Recommendations Barrier Free Assessment

The following conclusion and recommendations of the barrier free upgrades is qualified by the following
conditions:

. The remaining identified upgrades noted in the summary of upgrades can be considered .by the Owner
should they choose to exceed the Ontario Building Code (2012) and implement changes which would be

comparable to a newly constructed building that had to meet all criteria of Section 3.8 of the code.

. The design of public spaces (DOPS) standards are met at the Owners building. Upgrades at this time
are not required.

END OF BARRIER FREE ASSESSMENT REPORT

CRITCHLEY HILL ARCHITECTURE INC

MORTH BAY OCNTARIO 705.995.2391 CRITCHLEYHILL.CA







Powassan
Pre b

Library Board Minutes
September 23, 2019 at 6 pm

In attendance; Tina Martin, Bob Elliott, Chris Jull, Liz Moore, Debbie Piper, Doug Walli,
Marie Rosset

Absent with regrets: Stephen Boyle, Gloria Brown

Absent until 6:45pm: Debbie Piekarski,

a) Approval of agenda

Motion # 2019-45 Elliott-Walli: That the agenda for the September 23, 2019 meeting be
adopled as amended.

b) Disclosure of pecuniary interest
None,

d) Approval of minutes for June 24, 2019 meeting,
Motion # 2019-46 Walli-Elliott; That the Minutes for the June 24, 2019 meeting be
_ adopted as presented.

Business Arising

a) Powassan Tour Project
Hayden Wice completed his final report, which needs to be edited by Marie and forwarded to
Board Members. Overall the whole project was very successful and the plan is to continue
with the tours next summer. Once the report is reviewed and approved by the Board it will
be forwarded to the Municipal Council.

b} New Board Member Package - Compaosition
The following documents will be sent or given to all new members:
1. Current Strategic Plan
2. Past minutes - one year’s worth
3. Governance policies:
- GOV-01 Board Terms of Reference (explains most questions about meetings)
- GOV - 02 Board Directors’ Duties and Responsibilities
4. Annual Report — latest
5. Library Brochure
6. The link to Resource Kit for New Library Board Members from OLS-North,
which includes many links to other useful information
The new member will be sent or receive the package and a follow up meeting with the CEQ
will be arranged to discuss and clarify any questions.

DATE GF Al -
coweLurs| Ny S 14
PENDA
e ¢ A




¢) Valuing Northern Libraries - PDUPL 2018 SRI
During the Board training session on September 16, the issue of the Valuing Northern
Libraries Study was discussed. It involves entering the library data from the Annual Library
Survey into a worksheet (SROI Measurement Tools), which then assigns an agreed upon
value for each of the entries and returns a final ROI value, In 2018 the following wherc the
outcomes for the Powassan & District Union Public Library:
- For each municipal dollar invested, the Total Return on Investment is $17.14
Total economic Benefit : $2,646,894.15
(Cultural ldentity & Regional Integrity $35,386.00,
Social Inclusion $40,125.09,
Cognitive & Literacy Development $282,979.52,
Health & Wellness $47,296.00,
Engaged Citizens & Safer Communities $985,992.46,
Entertainment & Enjoyment $797,836.26,
Economic Development $355,475.20)
Benefit per resident: $383.16
Benefit per household: $959.02
Impact of one open hous: $597.41

H

These outcomes will be posted on our website and featured in the October newsletter, which
will be a great Segway to announce Library Week (October 20 - 26)

Correspondence
- None to report

Committee Reports
a) Property Committee (PC) Report
The following were projects tackled over the summer:

- AODA approved front door replacement - August 14-15
Totalcost  $3,602
EAG grant 2,300
Cost to library $1,203

- Platform and Gazebo - July 11
Total cost $1,757.72 (Platform 966,72, Gazebo 791)
Donation 1,000
Cost to library $757.72

- Oak tree planting - September 12
Costoftree  $132 (reduced by 40%)

Paving of Library parking lot - update
- The project is shelved until we have additional information about the
Municipality’s plans for the 250 Clark parking lot and the sanitary lines adjacent to
the library.
- . 3 quotes were obtained from local contractors, ranging from $7,950 to $27,500
- Bob Elliott commented that paving may not be the most environmentally friendly
option. The Property Committee may want to look at other options,




b) Fundraising Committee Report
- The net revenue from the 7% Annual Golf Tournament was $3,007, which is a
success given that our goal was to raise at least $2,500, We had 9 hole-
sponsorships and 24 players. The plan is to continue with this event next year.

- Received the second half of the OPPA grant totaling $200, to be used on children
programming

¢) Policy Committee Report

- Added “Establish programming and services for the LGBTQ population” to the
2019-2022 Strategic Plan under Objectives and Action Plans 5.1

- Current Emergency Instructions were update to be more specific and the
Evacuating Building Instructions will be reviewed by the Fire Department,

- RES-09 Dress Code Policy was reviewed and modified to state that Library Staff
will refrain from using heavily scented hygiene products.

- AC-01 Accessibility Policy was reviewed and required no modifications.

d) Friends of the Library Report

- Tul11e Friends have agreed 1o help with the next Lunch & Leamn scheduled for October
4%

- Their next fundraising activity is a silent auction for a fall themed basket.

- The maple syrup cookbook is now the responsibility of the Library, which may
decide to reissue e small number produced in-house.

- The Friends covered the expense of Science Norih and the Reptile Fellow this past
summer totaling $405.28

Financial Report
The financial reports for June, July, and August 2019 were presented.
Motion # 2019-47 Jull-Moore: That the Financial Reports for June 2019 be
adopted as presented.
Motion # 2019-48 Walli-Piper: That the Financial Reports for July 2019 be
adopted as presented.

Motion # 2019-49 Piper-Walli: That the Financial Reports for August 2019 be
adopted as presented.

Library Report
The Library report for June, July, and August 2019 were presented.
Motion # 2019-50 Moore-Jull: That the Library Report for June 2019 be adopted as
presented.
Motion # 2019-51 Piper-Jull: That the Library Report for July 2019 be adopted as
presented.

Motion # 2019-52 Elliott-Moore: That the Library Report for August 2019 be adopted
as presented.

New Business
a) Upcoming Events

Currently, the library runs an average of 5 to 6 events per day while open. Most of these
events are recurring events with committed and regular attendees. In the past, the staff




tried to feature at least one big event per month. These big events require a lot of time
and preparation and often in the past attendance has been disappointing, resulting in
cancelations. The staff along with the administration has decided to concentrate its time
and efforts on improving the regular events in the future.
Noteworthy events for October are:
- Lunch and Leam with author John Levesque on October 4,
- Library Week events: October 20 to 26
e Includes installing the nymph statue made by Mike Raymond in the backyard
» Installing a plaque at the base of the new oak trec — Library Week 2019
- Downstairs Art Gallery feature Sarah Carlin-Ball, completing her Bird Nest
painting every Tuesdays at 1pm,
- Christmas Party for Board Members, Volunteers, and Staff — December 13, 2019
- Christmas Open House - December 20® 1 to 3pm

b) Powassan & Area Work Group for Health '
Marie attended their first meeting, along with many heads of a variety of organizations
relevant to the health of this area’s (senior) population. The experience was positive and
the hope is to better synchronize the services being provided currently.

¢) Grants - Update
- Provincial Library Operational Grant - deadline October 24th

8. Adjournment
Motion # 2019-53 Moore: That the September 23, 2019 meeting be adjourned at 7 pm.

Next Meeting: Monday October 28, 2019 at 6pm
- / .

Chair

Chairperson:

Kristine Maxtin,

Secretary: M d/(/w, S g«—/\F

Marie Rossef, CEO




2019 Powassan Walking Tour Outcomes

Summary
Date Tour Attendance
21-Jun-19 Grand Qpening 11
5-Jul-19 Whole Sha-Bam i
12-Jul-19 Religion & Residences
2-Aug-19 All Wark,.. Some Play!
9-Aug-19 Religion & Residences 1
10-Aug-19 Whole Sha-Bam 10
12-Aug-19 Religion & Residences 5
15-Aug-19 Whole Sha-Bam 5
17-Aug-19 Whole Sha-Bam 1
Total , 36
Costs
Wages S 8,776.00
Benefits 1,684.80
Handout brochure 295.00
Video 1,000.00
Total S 11,755.80
Revenues
YCW Grant s 5,230.40
Mun. of Powassan 2,615.20 wages
Mun. of Powassan 1,000.00 video
Mun, of Powassan 295,00 brochure
Total $ ~ 5,140,60
Diff 5 (2,615.20)

Positive Outcomes

e Amazing experience for two local students, Hayden Wice - Tour Guide Developer and Forrest
Herman - videc producer,

* Video was completed at the end of August and is now on YouTube. It can also be found on the
Library Website under Events - Tour Guide

* Tour handouts were printed by Penney and Company.

»  Tour information is now available for future tours and volunteer guides

* A how-to guide exist for expanding the tour _

*  Municipality contributed to the financing of the video, handouts, and covered .25 of the

intern's wages.
Lessons Learned

* Advertising and cross promotion of the event could have been increased and improved.
* The weather in July was too hot, making it difficult to schedule any tours

Cetober 29, 2019




Moving Forward

» Itisthe hope that someone volunteers next summer to offer the tours to the community.
Alternatively, numbers could be installed at different noteworthy locations in Downtown
Powassan. The pubtlic could follow a recorded audio of a self-guided tour similar to the ones
offered in museums, The recording would need slight alterations to accommodate the differant
locations, '

¢ The library will keep copies of the video in different formats {DVD and USB) as part of their
cotlection. They will be available for barrowing and will be a useful resource, especially to
those who do not have access to the internet and You Tube,

Dctober 29, 2019




61

81

€9

8S1C je10L

%20°¢ S9 S1IBU10
%FT 0 € Hels
%ES'E 9z ajnolsay
%0881 8¢ SuissidIN
%08°L1 85S¢ wjoysiyd
%or'es  SLT'T UBSSEMOd

% el

6T0T ‘TE 1990100
SI9GUIBIN O J9qWINN




MEMORANDUM

TO: MAYOR/COUNCIL

FROM: K. BESTER, DEPUTY CLERK
DATE: OCTOBER 30, 2019
-RE: CEMETERY BYLAW

| recently attended the Municipal Compliance and Municipal Approvals for Cemeteries and
Crematorium: Funeral, Burial and Cremation Act, 2002 session held in Sudbury a few weeks
back. Most of the information provided was not new, given that we had been audited a few
years back and at that time had revised our bylaw, etc. to meet the prescribed legislative
format.

At this time | would however respectively ask that Council support a review of the bylaw by
myself, and the subsequent provision of a Draft for Council to review, to ensure that all
responsibilities (both municipal and consumer ones) are clearly stated within our bylaw, and
that we have all of the forms, etc. in place, as per the Funeral, Burial and Cremation Act, 2002,
This review would not take a lot of time and Council review of the Draft, and subsequent
comments, etc. could then be addressed prior to the Final bylaw being passed and submitted to
the appropriate authority.

Your direction on this matter is appreciated.

Thank you.

K.Bester

DATEQF N } 0
comich M16.] Imt. © ‘ | ¢4

(o

AGENDA :
i 9.




THE CORPORATION OF THE

MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN

MEMO
TO: COUNCIL
FROM: MAUREEN LANG, CAO/CLERK-TREASURER
SUBJECT: MUNICIPAL INTEGRITY COMMISSIONER-DAVID KING
DATE: OCTOBER 30, 2019

David King was appointed as our Integrity Commissioner in 2018. He is
reguesting us to do an “Ingquiry Protocol, Procedures and Council Training
Session” on his role. David King is also the Integrity Commissioner for
Chisholm Township and has proposed a joint training session to be held during
the last two weeks of November or first two weeks of December. He is asking
for a date of availability.

!

(] ﬂ[ﬁ%/
M. Lang
CAO/Clerk-Treasurer

it v,

DNEQE ] oy
COUNCH. T, MLU_il ¥

B g
] ﬂ;ig

Mt A

s




THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN

BY-LAW no, 2019-26

Being a By-Law to provide for reduced load periods within the boundaries of the Municipality of
Fowassan

WHEREAS subsection 7 of section 122 of The Highway Traffic Act, R. 8. 8. 1990, Chap. H. 8 as
Amended, provides that the municipal corporation or other authority having jurisdiction over a
highway may by by-law designate the date on which a reduced load period shall start or end and the
highway or portion thereof under i’y jurisdiction 1o which the designation applies;

AND WHEREAS the reduced load period is deemed necessary for the protection of certain highways
in the Municipality of Powassan and therefore the council of the Municipality of Powagsan enacts as

follows:

7.

The provisions of subsections 1, 2, 3 and 4 of section 122 of The Highway Traffic Act apply
to all municipal roadways within the boundaries of the Municipality of Powassan during the
period from the 19 day of March until the 30 day of June inclusive in each and every year.
The preceding dates may be altered at any time at the diseretion of the Public Works Foreman
or his alternate,

Reduced load periods may also be placed on all or any municipal road during the entire year
notwithstanding the period of time mentioned in Paragraph 1.

The Municipality of Powassan reserves the right to further reduce weight limits on certain
roads as deemed necessary by the Public Works Supervisor or other Council authority,

The provisions of this by-law shall 